
RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

REPORT ON AUDIT 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 



RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

Independent AuditorsJ Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Exhibit " A  - Statements of Net Assets, June 30, 2010 and 2009 

Exhibit "B" - Statements of Activities, for the years ended June 30, 
2010and2009 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Exhibit "C" - Balance Sheets - Governmental Fund - Fire Protection, 
June 30,2010 and 2009 

Exhibit "D" - Reconciliation of the Balance Sheets to the Statements of Net 
Assets Governmental Fund, June 30,2010 and 2009 

Exhibit "E" - Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Governmental Fund - Fire Protection, for the years 
endedJune30,2010and2009 

Exhibit "F" - Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances for Governmental Funds to the 
Statements of Activities Governmental Funds, for the years 
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

Page 

1 

2 - 8  

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 

Exhibit "G" - Statements of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund - Water, Ambulance 
and Sewer Departments, June 30,2010 and 2009 18-19 

Exhibit "H" - Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Asset - Proprietary Fund - Water, Ambulance and Sewer 

Departments, for the years ended June 30,2010 and 2009 20 

Exhibit "I" - Statements of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund - Water, 
Ambulance and Sewer Departments, for the years ended 
June 30,201 Oand 2009 

Exhibit "J" - Statements of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities, 
June 30,2010 and 2009 

Notes to Financial Statements 



RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

Page 

Required Supplementary lnformation Other Than Management's Discussion and 
Analysis 

Exhibit " K  - Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Governmental Fund - 
Fire Protection, for the years ended June 30, 201 0 and 2009 

Auditors' Report on Optional Supplementary lnformation 

Schedule One - Schedule of Capital Assets in Service at June 30, 2010 

Schedule Two - Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Assets - Proprietary Fund - Water Department, for the 
years ended June 30,2010 and 2009 

Schedule Three - Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Assets - Proprietary Fund -Ambulance Department, for 
the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

Schedule Four - Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Assets - Proprietary Fund - Sewer Department for the 
years ended June 30,2010 and 2009 

Schedule Five - 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement Principal and 
lnterest Repayment Schedule at June 30, 2010 

Schedule Six - Sewer Treatment, Series 2001 Installment Payable, City 
National Bank, Principal and lnterest Repayment 
Schedule at June 30,2010 

Schedule Seven - 2008 Municipal Finance Corporation Installment Payable, 
Principal and lnterest Repayment Schedule at June 30, 
201 0 

Schedule Eight - Special Assessment Districts Combining Statement of 
Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities at June 30, 2010 

Schedule Nine - Special Assessment Districts Combining Statement of 
Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 
for the year ended June 30, 201 0 

History and Organization 

Financial Review 



ROGERS, ANDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP 
CERTIF/ED PUEf IC ACCOUNTANTS 

ROBERT B MEMORY. C P A  (1945-2009) 

OF COUNSEL 
JAY H ZERCHER. C P A 

PHILLIP H. WALLER. C.P A. 
BRENDA L. ODLE. C.P.A. 

TERRY P. SHEA. C.P.A. 
KIRK A. FRANKS, C.P A. 

MATTHEW B. WILSON. C.P A 
SCOTT W. MANNO. C.P.A. 
LEENA SHANBHAG. C.P.A. 

NANCY O'RAFFERTY, C.P.A. 
BRADFERD A. WELEBIR, C.P.A. 

JENNY LIU. C.P.A 
KATIE L. MILLSOM. C.P.A. 

JONATHAN R. KUHN, C P.A 
PAPA MATAR THIAW. C.P A 
KATHERINE J. MUIR. C P A  

MAYAS. IVANOVA. C P A .  
CHRISTOPHER MONTOYA. C.P.A. 

DANIELLE E. ODGERS. C.P A. 

Board of Directors 
Running Springs Water District 
31 242 Hilltop Boulevard 
Running Springs, CA 92382 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities 
and each major fund of the Running Springs Water District as of and for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirement for California Special Districts. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Running 
Springs Water District as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and where 
applicable, cash flows, thereof for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller's Office and State 
Regulations governing special districts. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion and 
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 2 through 8 and 54 through 55, be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

November 10, 201 0 

MEMBERS 

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

PCPs THE AlCPA ALLIANCE FOR CPA FIRMS 

CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

VANlR TOWER 290 NORTH " D M  STREET SUITE 300 
SAN BERNARDINO, CA 92401 

(909) 889-0871 (909) 824-6736 FAX (909) 889-5361 
Website: www.rarnscpa.net 



31212 HILLTOP BObLEV/\RD - POST OFFICE BOX 2206 
RUNNING SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA 92382 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Running Springs Water District (District) is a public agency of the State of California. The District was 
formed March 17, 1958 and established under Division 12 of the Water Code of the State of California 
and has been engaged in financing, constructing, operating, maintaining, and furnishing water service to 
its customers since inception. In 1962, the District established a fire department to provide fire protection 
for the area included in the Water District. In 1976, a sewage disposal system was completed to provide 
sewer service for the District. In 1983, an ambulance service was established. 

The Basic Financial Statements 

Running Springs Water District is a special purpose government (special District) engaged only in 
activities that support themselves through user and standby charges and tax levies. Accordingly, the 
accompanying financial statements are presented in the format prescribed for proprietary funds by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

This report consists of four parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, required supplementary information, and optional supplementary information. The 
basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the Running 
Springs Water District. 

The first two statements (Exhibit "A" and Exhibit "B") are government-wide financial statements that 
provide both long-term and short-term information about the District's overall financial status. 

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual funds of the District, 
reporting the operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 

The governmental fund statements tell how general government services like the fire department 
were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 
The proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities 
the government operates like businesses, such as the water, ambulance and sewer departments. 

The financial statements include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements 
and provide more detailed data. The statements (including the notes) are followed by a section of 
required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial 
statements. 



Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all governmental and 
business-type activities are consolidated into columns, which add to the total for the Primary Government. 
The focus of the Statement of Net Assets is designed to be similar to a bottom line for the District and its 
governmental and business-type activities. These statements combine and consolidate governmental 
fund's current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term 
obligations. 

The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities (including 
governmental and business-type), which are provided by the District's property taxes and other revenues. 
This is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of the cost of governmental services and/or 
subsidy to various business-type activities. 

The "Governmental Activities" reflect the District's basic fire protection services. The "Business-type 
Activities" reflect private sector type operations (Water, Ambulance and Sewer), where the fee for service 
typically covers all or most of the cost of operation including depreciation. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental funds report using balance sheets and statements of revenues, expenditures and changes 
in fund balances, which are presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources basis. The flow and 
availability of liquid resources is a clear and appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. 
Governmental funds will reflect bond proceeds and internal fund transfers as other financial sources as 
well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures. 

Proprietary funds report using statements of net assets, which presents our assets and liabilities and the 
difference, or net, between what we own and what we owe as of the last day of our fiscal year. The 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets describe the financial results of our 
proprietary operations for the fiscal years reported. These results, or changes in net assets, are the 
increases or decreases in the bottom line of the statement of net assets. Readers also need to know how 
we manage our cash resources during the year to effect the changes in net assets. This information is 
conveyed in the statements of cash flows. These statements reconcile the income or loss from 
operations that are reported on the accrual basis with the actual cash inflows and uses. The statements 
of cash flows also detail how we obtain cash through financing and investing activities and, similarly, how 
we spend cash for these purposes. 

The proprietary fund presentation produces the same totals as the business-type column in the 
government-wide financial statements; however, the governmental fund statements require reconciliation 
to the government-wide financial statements because of the different measurement focuses (current 
financial resources versus total economic resources), which is reflected in Exhibits "Dl1 and "F." The flow 
of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and internal fund transfers as other financial 
sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures. The reconciliation 
will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital assets and long-term obligations (bonds and 
others) into the "Governmental ActivitiesJ' column in the government-wide statements. 



Summary Financial lnformation and Analysis 

During the year ended June 30, 201 0, cash and temporary investments increased $658,925, the District's 
Total Assets decreased $14,081 and Net Assets increased $315,296. 

June 30,2010 June 30,2009 
Assets: 
Current Assets 
Restricted Assets 
Noncurrent Assets - including capital assets 17,922,757 18,237,416 

Total Assets 22,697,594 22,711,675 

Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities 
Long-term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets: 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 16,382,276 16,362,374 
Restricted for Debt Service 682,708 763,030 
Unrestricted 3,419,653 3,043,937 

Total Net Assets $ 20,484,637 $ 20,169,341 

The $315,296 increase in Net Assets included net expense of ($201,920) from the Business-type 
Activities and a net expense of ($1,230,174) from the Governmental Activities and general revenues of 
$1,747,390. 

Summary Financial lnformation and Analysis on Statement of Activities 

June 30,2010 June 30,2009 
Revenues: 

Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total Revenues 

Expenses: 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total Expenses 

Change in Net Assets 



Governmental Activities 

Revenues 
Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 
Proceeds From Sale of Capital 

Assets 
Net Change 

Statement of 
Revenues and 
Expenditures 

Governmental Fund 
(Fire Protection) 

$ 1,773,434 
1,417,690 

Statement of 
Activities 

GASB 34 Government-Wide 
Conversion (Fire Protection) 

Revenues decreased $63,734 from the prior year in the Governmental Fund (Fire Protection). The 
revenue from property taxes decreased $97,454 or 6%. Expenditures decreased $22,298 from the prior 
year with the largest decrease in salaries and wages, which was $54,644 or 7%. 

Business-type Activities 

Water Ambulance Sewer Totals 
Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses): 
Leasing revenue 
Assessments - availability charges 
Interest 
Special charges 
Leachate loads 
Miscellaneous 
Interest on long-term debt 
Cost of availability charges 
Bond issuance costs 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets ( I  ,032) - (3,651) (4,683) 

Income (Loss) Before Property 
Contributions 73,473 (143,641) 50,518 (1 9,650) 

Property contributions 
Change in Net Assets 



Operating expenses have decreased from the prior year by $21 1,580. The largest decreases were in 
purchased water, professional fees, and repairs and maintenance. In the Water Department for the year, 
purchased water expense decreased $1 12,766 or 35%, and power purchased for pumping increased 
11%. Professional fees in the Water Department were $27,634 lower than the amount for the prior year, 
which is a 27% decrease. In the Ambulance Department for the year, ambulance fees increased 
$100,889 or 26% and uncollectible accounts increased $29,522 or 29%. In the Sewer Department for the 
year, repairs and maintenance decreased in sewage collections by $17,585 and in sewage treatment by 
$36,599. Professional fees in the Sewer Department were $64,672 lower than the amount for the prior 
year, which is a 52% decrease. The large decreases in professional fees are attributable to higher master 
plan fees in the prior year. 

Non-operating revenues decreased 54% from the prior year. Miscellaneous revenue decreased $779,287 
attributable mostly to insurance proceeds received or receivable in the prior year as a result of the Slide 
Fire. 

Capital Contributions of $32,643 were a result of $-0- for upstream users filtration project, $22,138 from 
sewer capacity charges and connection fees, and $10,505 from water capacity charges and meter 
installation fees. 

Categories of Net Assets 

The District is required to present its net assets in three categories: lnvested in Capital Assets, Restricted 
and Unrestricted. 

lnvested in Ca~i ta l  Assets 

At June 30, 2010, lnvested in Capital Assets included Construction in Progress and Utility Plant in service, 
net of Accumulated Depreciation, which totaled $17,920,882. This amount is reduced by ($1,538,606) in 
related debt. 

Restricted Net Assets 

At June 30, 2010, the restricted net assets included amounts that are receivable from the upstream users 
for construction that is restricted to pay the related debt. The balance at June 30, 2010 is $682,708. 

Unrestricted 

The District had unrestricted net assets of $3,419,653 at June 30, 2010. 

Capital Assets 

The District placed in service $213,131 of properly, plant, and equipment during 2009-2010, which 
included $76,060 from the closing of the K-Turbo Blowers project and $31,157 from the purchase of land 
for the Ayers Acres project. The District also retired $204,475 of property, plant and equipment during the 
year. These amounts are reflected in Schedule of Capital Assets in the accompanying financial 
statements. 



A table of how these dollars translate is as follows: 

Utilitv Plant in Service 

June 30,2010 
Fire Dept 

Land and land rights $ 414,676 
Structures and improvements 395,451 
Fire trucks and mounted equipment 727,842 
Special purpose equipment 545,314 
Office equipment 19,554 
Shop and station equipment 10,200 

2,113,037 

Water Dept 
Land 
Source of supply 
Pumping 
Water treatment 
Transmission and distribution 
General plant 

Sewer Dept 
Land and land rights 
Structures and improvements 
Sewer collection 
Sewer treatment 
Sewer disposal 
General plant 

Ambulance Dept 
Special purpose equipment 
Equipment - trucks 
Office equipment 

Totals 

Construction in Proqress (CIP) 

June 30.2009 

Construction in progress for the prior year was restated from $102,197 to $9,390 as a result of retroactive 
presentation of the new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 51 (see Note 
1 in Notes to the Financial Statements). During the year, construction in progress increased $149,744 
government-wide from $9,390 at June 30, 2009 to $1 59,134 at June 30, 201 0. 



Budget to Actual Variances 

Within the Governmental Activities the original and final budgets were the same. The variance in the 
budget and actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 201Q resulted in an unfavorable variance of 
$5,367. Large favorable variances were created as a result of additional property taxes, and fewer capital 
assets purchased. The largest unfavorable variance was salaries and wages. 

Long-Term Debt 

The District's long-term debt consists of 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement, which has an 
outstanding balance of $398,467, Sewer Treatment, 2001 Installment Payable, which has an outstanding 
balance of $1,108,165, and 2008 Municipal Finance Corporation installment payable, which has an 
outstanding balance of $44,331. 

Regxlatwy and Envi:~nmenta! Planning 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the California Department of Public 
Health (DOPH) prescribe regulations that establish standards for the drinking water provided by Running 
Springs Water District to its customers. The District continually tests the water it delivers to its customers 
to insure that the water meets these standards. The USEPA has indicated that it is considering adopting 
more stringent regulations in several areas that would require the District to increase the level of water 
treatment to ensure that the water would meet the proposed new standards. The additional water 
treatment would require additional capital improvement costs and increased operating costs. The extent of 
these costs are unknown until the regulations are adopted and an implementation schedule is established. 

On January 1, 2010, Section 2 of Section 116875 of the Health and Safety Code of California became 
operative. The section modified the allowed content of lead in pipes and plumbing supplies in order to be 
considered "lead free." Management is in the process of evaluating the effects that this modified law will 
have on the District. It is likely that some of the District's inventory will need to be scrapped as obsolete. 



ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

Cash 
Temporary investments 
Accounts receivable: 

Customers - Water, Sewer and Ambulance - 
net of allowance 

Water, fire and sewer availability charges 
Other receivables 
Other - Brooking Mutual Water 
Taxes receivable 

Interest receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Deposit - workers' compensation 
Materials and supplies inventory - at cost - 

(first-inlfirst-out method) 
Total Current Assets 

RESTRICTED ASSETS: 
Construction receivables - upstream users 

Total Restricted Assets 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 
Deferred charges 
Capital assets: 

Utility plant, at cost 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Construction in progress 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Exhibit " A  
Page 1 of 2 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
201 0 2009 201 0 2009 

Total 
201 0 2009 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-9- 



Exhibit " A  
Page 2 of 2 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
201 0 2009 201 0 2009 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued wages payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Payroll withholding liabilities 
Other payables 
Deferred availability charges 
Portion of long-term liabilities due within one year 

Total Current Liabilities 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 
Accrued compensated absences 121,640 128,960 124,938 11 5,260 
2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement - - 290,405 398,467 
Sewer treatment, 2001 installment payable - - 971,256 1,108,165 
2008 Municipal Finance Corporation installment 

payable - - 22,680 44,331 
Less: deferred amount on refunding water bonds - - (1 2,357) (1 7,299) 

Total Long-term Liabilities 121,640 128,960 1,396,922 1,648,924 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1 , I  59,357 1,235,145 15,222,919 15,127,229 
Restricted for debt service - - 682,708 763,030 
Unrestricted 1,070,672 692,581 2,348,981 2,351,356 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 2,230,029 $ 1,927,726 $ 18,254,608 $ 18,241,615 

Total 
201 0 2009 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-1 0- 



RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

JUNE 30,2010 

- 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Operating Grants, Change in Net Assets 

Charges for Capital Grants Governmental Business-type 
Expenses Services & Contributions Activities ~ctivities ~ 

FUNCTIONS 1 PROGRAMS: 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: 

Governmental Activities: 
Fire Protection $ 1,479,131 $ 206,222 $ 42,735 $ (1,230,174) $ - 

Total Governmental Activities 1,479,131 206,222 42,735 (1,230,174) - 

Business-type Activities: 
Water 
Ambulance 
Sewer 1,688,044 1,702,046 22,138 - 36,140 

Total Business-type Activities 4,OI 8,066 3,783,503 32,643 - (201,920) 

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 5,497,197 $ 3,989,725 $ 75,378 (1,230,174) (201,920) 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Property taxes 
Investment earnings 
Leasing revenue 
Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 302,303 12,993 

NET ASSETS - beginning of year 1,927,726 18,241,615 

NET ASSETS - end of year 

Total 

Exhibit "B" 
Page 1 of 2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-1 1- 



Exhibit "B" 
Page 2 of 2 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

JUNE 30,2009 

2009 
Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Operating Grants, Change in Net Assets 
Charges for Capital Grants Governmental Business-type 

Expenses Services & Contributions Activities Activities Total 
FUNCTIONS / PROGRAMS: 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: 

Governmental Activities: 
Fire Protection $ 1,555,795 $ 199,471 

Total Governmental Activities 1,555,795 199,471 

Business-type Activities: 
Water 
Ambulance 
Sewer 1,791,920 1,571,692 

Total Business-tv~e Activities 4.237.776 3.607.017 

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 5,793,571 $ 3,806,488 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Property taxes 
Investment earnings 
Leasing revenue 
Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS, as restated 

NET ASSETS - beginning of year 

NET ASSETS - end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-1 2- 



Exhibit "C" 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

BALANCE SHEETS 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - FIRE PROTECTION 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

Temporary investments 
Accounts receivable: 

Fire availability charges 
Taxes receivable 
Other receivable 
Deposit - workers' compensation 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued wages payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Other payables 

Total Current Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES: 
Unreserved 

Total Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-1 3- 



Exhibit "D" 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEETS 

TO THE STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

Fund ba!ances - t ~ t a !  governments! fund 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statements of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 
not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the 
current period and, therefore, are not reported in 
the governmental funds. 

Long-term compensated absences payable (121,640) (1 28,960) 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 2,230,029 $ 1,927,726 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-14- 



Exhibit "E" 
Page 1 of 2 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - FIRE PROTECTION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

REVENUES: 
Prnnerty t a ~ e s  - .-r-.- --'--- 
Assessments - fire availability charges 
Other revenue 
Interest revenue 
Intergovernmental revenue 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Salaries and wages 
Director fees 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Safety clothing and personal supplies 
Telephone 
Insurance 
Maintenance: 

Building 
Automotive equipment 
Special purpose equipment 

Memberships 
Office expense 
Professional services 
Education, training 
Small tools and instruments 
Special department expense - fire fightinglmedical supplies 
Utilities 
Dispatching expense 
Community relations - fire prevention 
Miscellaneous 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-1 5- 



Exhibit "EM 
Page 2 of 2 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - FIRE PROTECTION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

EXPENDITURES: (continued) 
General operating expenses allnc.afed from Water 

Department - salaries, utilities, etc. 
Capital assets 

Total Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing Sources 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE, as restated 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE - beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-1 6- 



Exhibit "F" 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

Net Change in Fund Balances - total governmental funds $ 370,771 $ 397,180 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statements of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as 
expenditures. However, in the statements of 
activities, the costs of those assets is depreciated 
over their estimated useful lives. 

Expenditures for capital assets 22,925 
Current year depreciation (77,624) 

Donations of capital assets from outside parties are 
not recorded in a government fund because 
current financial resources are not involved. 
However, in the statement of activities, the 
contribution is recognized at the fair value of 
the donated property. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of 
activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Decrease (increase) in long-term compensated 
absences payable 

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets are reported 
as current financial resources in the governmental 
funds. In the statement of net assets, however, the 
assets sold or disposed had been capitalized 
previously and thus have a "book value" that needs 
to be removed. The difference between the 
proceeds and the book value is a gain or loss that 
is recognized in the statements of activities. This 
adjustment reduces the proceeds by the book value 
of the assets disposed. (29,089) - 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

Exhibit "G" 
Page 1 of 2 

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER, AMBULANCE AND SEWER DEPARTMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS: 

Cash 
Temporary investments 
Accounts receivable: 

Customers - Water, Sewer and Ambulance - net of 
allowances 

Water and sewer availability charges 
Upstream users - C.S.A. #79 and Arrowbear 
Other - San Bernardino County 
Other - Insurance proceeds and miscellaneous 
Other - Miscellaneous 
Other - Brookings Mutual Water 

Interest receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Deposit - workers' compensation 
Material and supplies inventory - at cost - (first-inlfirst-out 

method) 
Total Current Assets 

RESTRICTED ASSETS: 
Construction receivable - upstream users 682,708 763,030 

Total Restricted Assets 682,708 763,030 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 
Deferred charges 
Capital assets: 

Utility plant, at cost 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Construction in progress 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 20,273,385 20,568,981 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

Exhibit "G" 
Page 2 of 2 

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER. AMBULANCE AND SEWER DEPARTMENTS 

JUNE 30.201 0 AND 2009 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILIT!ES: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued wages payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Payroll withholding liabilities 
Other payables 
Deferred availability charges 
Portion of long-term liabilities due within one year 

Total Current Liabilities 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 
Accrued compensated absences 
2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement 
Sewer treatment, 2001 installment payable 
2008 Municipal Finance Corporation installment 

payable 
Less: deferred amount on refunding water bonds 

Total Long-term Liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Exhibit "H" 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND -WATER. AMBULANCE AND SEWER DEPARTMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Water Department - Schedule Two $ 1,411,000 $ 1,435,288 
Ambulance Department - Schedule Three 489,488 388,599 
Sewer Department - Schedule Four 1,429,272 1,368,285 

3,329,760 3,192,172 

O P E w i i i i G  Ei(PEi\jSEs - inciuding depreciation and 
amortization: 

Water Department - Schedule Two 1,672,371 1,827,052 
Ambulance Department - Schedule Three 630,172 586,387 
Sewer Department - Schedule Four 1,628,631 1,729,315 

3,931 , I  74 4,142,754 

OPERATING LOSS (601,414) (950,582) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES: 
Revenues: 

Leasing revenue 
Assessments - water and sewer availability charges 
lnterest 
Special meter charges - water 
Special sewer charge - treatment plant 
Leachate loads 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 
Miscellaneous 

Total Non-operating Revenues 

Expenses: 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
lnterest on long-term debt 
Cost of assessing availability charges 
Bond issuance costs 

Total Non-operating Expenses 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions 
Capital contributions - Sewer 
Capital contributions - Water 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS, as restated 424,850 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 12,993 

Net Assets - beginning of the year 18,241,615 17,816,765 

Net Assets - end of the year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Exhibit "I" 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Page 1 of 2 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER. AMBULANCE AND SEWER DEPARTMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

201 0 2009 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash received from customers $ 3,261,042 $ 3,264,687 
Cash paid for employee services (2,041,435) (1,942,256) 
Cash paid to suppliers (1,244,834) (1,619,110) 
Other revenue received 524,521 1,015,462 
Miscellaneous expenses paid (208) (327) 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 499,086 71 8,456 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Availability charges received 55,945 54,733 

Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities 55,945 54,733 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from sale of utility plant 
Special meter charges 
Proceeds from grants to be repaid 
Repayment of debt 
Capital contributions 
lnterest paid 
Acquisition and construction of utility plant 

Net Cash (Used For) Capital and Related Financing 
Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
lnterest received 

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 223,376 (264,629) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,727,928 1,992,557 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,951,304 $ 1,727,928 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH PER STATEMENT OF 
CASH FLOWS TO THE STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS: 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash $ 221,343 $ 85,824 
Temporary investments 1,729,961 1,642,104 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

Exhibit "I" 
Page 2 of 2 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER, AMBULANCE AND SEWER DEPARTMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

201 0 2009 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 

P!?O\!!DED BY OPERAT!?I,G F.CT!\./!T!ES: 

Operating Loss $ (601,414) $ (950,582) 

Adjustments: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other income 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
(Increase) decrease in deposit - workers' 

compensation 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in payroll withholdings 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued vacation and sick pay 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 499,086 $ 718,456 

NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTIONS: 
Acquired capital assets with loan $ - $ 65,000 
Acquired capital assets with accounts payable 9,450 - 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
-22- 



Exhibit "J" 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash with fiscal agent 
Temporary investments 
A..ssessments rec-ei\./&!e 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Bonds payable - 191 5 Act Bonds 
Due to others 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 1: NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Nature of Activities 

Running Springs Water District was organized on March 17, 1958 under authority of 
the California Water Code. The District has been engaged in financing, constructing, 
operating, maintaining and furnishing water service to its customers since inception. 
In 1962, the District established a fire department to provide fire protection for the 
area included in the Water District. In 1976, the sewage disposal system was 
completed to provide sewer service for the District. An ambulance service has been 
provided by the District since 1983. In 2005, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 26 
which provides authorization for the removal of dead or dying trees. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the Running Springs Water District are organized on the basis of 
funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of 
each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenses, or expenditures, 
as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual 
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by 
which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in the 
financial statements in this report, into two generic fund types as follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is 
used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for 
in another fund. At the present time the General Fund is used to account for all 
financial resources of the Fire Department. 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

Proprietary Fund - The Proprietary Fund is used to account for operations of the 
Water, Sewer and Ambulance Departments that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprise - where the intent of the District is that 
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 1: NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses or expenditures are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of 
accounting relates the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the 
measurement focus applied. 

The Proprietary Fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when 
they are incurred. 

The Governmental Fund is accounted for using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available 
as net current assets. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 
the 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized when the related 
fund liability is incurred. 

The District has elected to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board 
pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989 and all pronouncements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

On July 1, 2002, the District adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 34 "Basic Financial Statemenfs - and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments." Statement 34 
established standards for external financial reporting for all state and local 
governmental entities, which includes government-wide financial statements, 
consisting of a statement of net assets and a statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets. It requires the classification of net assets into three 
components - invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and 
unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets 
consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt 
proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds 
are not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net assets component as 
the unspent proceeds. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 1: NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Restricted - This component of net assets consists of constraints placed on net 
asset use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through 
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. The District would typically use restricted assets first, as 
appropriate opportunities arise. 

Unrestricted net assets - This component of net assets consists of net assets that 
do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt." 

Statement 34 also requires fund financial statements consisting of governmental fund 
statements and proprietary fund statements. The governmental fund statements 
include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in 
fund balance. Both governmental statements must be reconciled to the 
governmental fund columns on the government-wide financial statements. The 
proprietary fund statements consist of a statement of net assets, a statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and a statement of cash flows. 

The governmental fund is accounted for on a spending or "financial flow" 
measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are 
generally included on its balance sheet. Its reported fund balance (net current assets) 
is considered a measure of "available spendable resources." Governmental fund 
operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and 
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 
Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available 
spendable resources" during a period. 

On July 1, 2007, the District adopted the provisions of Governmental Auditing 
Standards Board Statement No. 50 "Pension Disclosures." This statement requires 
cost-sharing employers to include, in the note disclosure, the required contribution 
rates of the employer in dollars and the percentage of that amount contributed for the 
current year and each of the two preceding years and how the contractually required 
contribution rate is determined. 

Effective July 1, 2009, the Running Springs Water District adopted a new accounting 
statement issued by the Governmental Auditing Standards Board (GASB): 

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets 

Statement No. 51 was effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. (See 
NOTE 22). 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 1: NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. Capital Assets 

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with 
a fund are determined by its measurement focus. The proprietary fund is accounted 
for on a cost of service or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means 
that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurrent, associated with its 
activity are included on its statement of net assets. Its reported net assets are 
segregated into invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and 
unrestricted net assets. Proprietary fund operating statements present change in net 
assets. 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost 
is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the 
date donated. Donated capital assets are recorded in the government-wide 
statements, but they are not recorded in the governmental fund because current 
financial resources are not involved. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets used by the Proprietary Fund is charged 
as an expense against its operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the 
proprietary fund statement of net assets. Depreciation has been provided over the 
estimated useful lives using the straight line method. 

Capital assets used in governmental fund type operations are not accounted for in the 
governmental funds. However, for the purpose of the government-wide financial 
statements required under Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 
34, capital assets are recorded and depreciated over the estimated useful lives. 

E. Restricted Assets 

The District holds certain funds which are restricted for specific purposes. These 
restricted funds consist principally of construction receivable - upstream users. 
These funds are not available for general operations. 



Page 5 of 30 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 1 : NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

F. Classification of Revenue 

The enterprise (proprietary) funds of the District classify the revenues into three 
classifications: operating revenue, non-operating revenue, and contributions. 

Operating revenues are defined as revenues realized by the District in exchange for 
providing its primary services of water distribution, wastewater collection, and 
ambulance response to its customers. Non-operating revenues are those derived 
from the investment of cash reserves and from the disposal of excess property, and 
also include those resources received from entities other than customers, such as 
governmental agencies and developers, for purposes not related to capital 
improvement. Donated plant and cash received for capital improvement without the 
requirement that the District give resources in exchange are recorded as 
contributions. 

G. Other Significant Accounting Policies 

Customers are billed on a monthly basis and the related revenues are recorded when 
customers are billed. 

Ambulance customers are billed after service has been provided. The District 
provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated collection losses 
that will be incurred in collection of the ambulance receivables. Allowance for 
uncollectible ambulance fees was $655,410 at June 30, 2010 and $525,713 at 
June 30,2009. 

Inventories of materials and supplies, consisting of parts used for utility plant 
construction and repair, are carried at cost using first-in, first-out. 

Capital contributions represent cash or capital asset additions contributed to the 
District by property owners or developers desiring service that require capital 
expenditures or capacity commitment. Depreciation of contributed utility plant 
additions is charged to operations. 

Intergovernmental revenues, such as grant revenues, are recognized as receivables 
and revenues when all eligibility requirements have been met. 

H. Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of reporting changes in cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid 
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 1: NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

I. Reporting Entity 

In determining the agencies or entities which comprise the governmental entity for 
financial reporting purposes, the criteria of oversight responsibility over such entities, 
special financing relationships and scope of public service provided by the entities are 
used. Oversight responsibility is determined by the extent of financial 
interdependency, control over the selection of the governing authority and 
management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal 
matters. Based on these criteria, all accounts and transactions of the Running 
Springs Water District and the Running Springs Fire Department are included in 
these financial statements. 

J. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires the use of estimates based on management's 
knowledge and experience. Due to their prospective nature, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2: CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2010 and 2009 are classified in the accompanying financial statements 
as follows: 

June 30,2010 

Cash 

Government Statements of 
Wide Fiduciary 

Statements of Assets and 
Net Assets Liabilities Total 

$ 221,343 $ 136,385 $ 357,728 
Temporary investments 2,706,489 345,387 3,051,876 

$ 2,927,832 $ 481,772 $ 3,409,604 

Demand accounts 
Petty cash 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
Cash with fiscal agents 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 2: CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS (continued) 

June 30,2009 

Government Statements of 
Wide Fiduciary 

Statements of Assets and 

Cash 
Net Assets Liabilities Total 

$ 85,824 $ 136,385 $ 222,209 
Temporary investments 2,183,083 448,091 2,631,174 

$ 2,268,907 $ 584,476 $ 2,853,383 

Demand accounts 
Petty cash 
Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) 
Cash with fiscal agents 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's lnvestment Policy 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District's investment policy and 
in accordance with Section 53601 of the California Government Code. The table also identifies certain 
provisions of the District's investment policy that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk. 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes or Bonds 1 year 
Certificates of Deposit 1 year 
California Local Agency Investment Fund NIA 
Government Agency Securities 1 year 

None 
None 
None 
None 

None 
None 
None 
None 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2089 

NOTE 2: CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Disclosures Relating to lnterest Rate Risk 

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the District can manage its exposure to interest 
rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter and longer term investments and by timing cash flows 
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time 
as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

As of June 30, 201 0 and 2009 the District had the following investments: 

201 0 2009 
Amount Maturity Date Amount Maturity Date 

State investment pool $ 3,051,876 Weighted $ 2,631,174 Weighted 
average average 
7 months 6 months 

$ 3,051,876 $ 2,631,174 

Investments with Fair Values Hinhlv Sensitive to lnterest Rate Fluctuations 

At June 30, 2010 and 2009, the District does not hold investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate 
fluctuations beyond that already indicated in the information provided above. 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California 
Government Code, the District's investment policy and the actual rating as of year end for each 
investment type. 

Minimum Legal 
Investment Type Amount Rating Not Rated 

June 30,2010 

State Investment Pool $ 3,051,876 NIA $ 3,051,876 

June 30,2009 

State Investment Pool 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 2: CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. At June 30, 2010 and 2009, the District 
did not hold any investments in any one issuer (other than external pools) that represent 5% or more of 
total District investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that in the event of the failure, of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to 
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The 
California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than 
the following provision for deposits. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 11 0% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. 

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, $6,610 and $0, respectively, of the District's deposits with financial 
institutions were in excess of federal depository insurance limits. 

lnvestment in State lnvestment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California, and all LAlF 
financial reports can be accessed from the State Treasurers web page. The District's investment in this 
pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at cost which approximates fair value at 
amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAlF for the entire LAlF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based 
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. The pool 
is run with "dollar-in, dollar-out" participation. The difference between fair value and amortized cost is 
immaterial. There are no adjustments to reflect changes in fair value. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 3: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - CUSTOMERS 

Accounts receivable from customers consists of the following at June 30, 201 0 and 2009: 

June 30,2010 June 30,2009 
Customers - water and sewer $ 171,290 $ 177,396 
Ambulance receivable 994,375 840,450 
Allowance for uncollectible ambulance charges (655,410) (525,713) 

$ 510,255 $ 492,133 

Management considers the receivable from water and sewer customers to be fully collectible; accordingly, 
the allowance for doubtful accounts for water and sewer customers is zero. 

NOTE 4: OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Other receivables consist of the following at June 30, 201 0 and 2009: 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Upstream users - CSA79 
and Arrowbear $ - $ - $ 105,521 $ 90,827 

San Bernardino County 
(Leachate) - - 40,183 5,334 

Insurance receivable - - 5,148 212,109 
Miscellaneous - 18 1,433 1,614 
Payroll related items 

NOTE 5: ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS 

The District has formed ten assessment districts for the purpose of constructing and installing sewer 
interceptor lines, lift stations and water systems. 

Assessment Districts No. 1 through No. 5 were organized and assessments issued pursuant to the 
provisions of the Municipal lmprovement Act of 1913, Division 12, of the Streets and Highways Code of 
the State of California. Serial bonds were issued on all unpaid assessments in accordance with part 5, 
Division 7, of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California and the lmprovement Act of 191 1. 
These bonds extended over a period of nine years and bore interest at the rate of 7% per annum. 
Resolutions were passed by the District's Board of Directors designating the County Treasurer of San 
Bernardino County to act as assessment collection agency for the five assessment districts. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 5: ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS (continued) 

Assessment Districts No. 6 and No. 7 were formed during 1975-76. Bonds were issued pursuant to the 
lmprovement Act of 1915, Division 10, of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California. 
These bonds, which extended over a period of 24 years and bore interest at the rate of 5% per annum, 
were payable to Farmers Home Administration. These bonds were paid off during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1997. 

Assessment District No. 8 was organized and assessments issued pursuant to the provisions of the 
Municipal lmprovement Act of 1913, Division 12, of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of 
California. Serial bonds were issued on all unpaid assessments in accordance with part 5, Division 7, of 
the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California and the lmprovement Act of 191 1. These bonds 
extended over a period of five years and bore interest at the rate of 11% per annum. Resolutions were 
passed by the District's Board of Directors, designating the Secretary-Treasurer of the Running Springs 
Water District to act as assessment collection agency for the assessment district. 

Assessment District No. 9 was organized and assessments issued pursuant to the provisions of the 
Municipal lmprovement Act of 1913, Division 12, of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of 
California. Serial bonds were issued on all unpaid assessments in accordance with part 5, Division 7, of 
the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California and the lmprovement Act of 191 1. These bonds 
extended over a period of fifteen years and bore interest at the rate of 4.5% to 7.5% per annum. 
Resolutions were passed by the District's Board of Directors, designating the County Treasurer of San 
Bernardino County to act as assessment collection agency for the assessment district. These bonds were 
paid off during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. 

On July 1, 2003, the District completed forming Assessment District No. 10 (Rimwood area). The 
Assessment District was formed, and the construction and acquisition of the water improvements was 
completed as of June 30, 2005, as authorized under the provisions of the Municipal lmprovement Act of 
1913 (Division 12 of the California Streets and Highways Code) (the "1913 Act"). The Bonds have been 
issued pursuant to the provisions of the lmprovement Bond Act of 1915 (Division 10 of the California 
Streets and Highways Code) (the "1915 Act"). Running Springs Water District 2004 Limited Obligation 
lmprovement Bonds, Running Springs Water District, Assessment District No. 10 (the "Bonds") were 
issued in the aggregate principal amount of $1,361,000. The property owners in Assessment District No. 
10 will be assessed annual property taxes to pay for these "Bonds." Resolutions were passed by the 
District's Board of Directors designating the County Treasurer of San Bernardino County to act as 
assessment collection agency for the assessment district. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows: 

June 30,2010 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

Balance 
June 30,2009 

Balance 
Retirements June 30, 2010 Additions 

FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
Land and land rights 
Structures and improvements 
Fire trucks and mounted 

equipment 
Special purpose equipment 
Office equipment 
Shop and station equipment 

TOTALS 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 

Balance 
June 30.2009 

Balance 
June 30,2010 Additions Retirements 

WATER DEPARTMENT: 
Land and land rights 
Source of supply plant 
Pumping plant 
Water treatment plant 
Transmission and distribution 

plant 
Office furniture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Tools and shop equipment 
Structures - office and shop 
Communication equipment 
Special purpose equipment 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

June 30, 2010 (continued) 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (continued): 

Balance Balance 
June 30,2009 Additions Retirements June 30, 201 0 

SEWER DEPARTMENT: 
Land and land rights $ 322,006 $ $ - $ 322,006 
Structures and improvements 302,127 - 302,127 
Sewer collection facility 7,334,623 22,315 15,443 7,341,495 
Sewer treatment facility 5,739,982 97,702 - 5,837,684 
Sewer disposal facility 1,380,369 - 1,380,369 
General plant facilities 526,746 - 526,746 

15,605,853 120,017 15,443 15,710,427 

AMBULANCE DEPARTMENT: 
Special purpose equipment 133,424 - 985 132,439 
Equipment - trucks 31 1,294 4,943 316,237 
Office equipment 9,905 - 9,905 

454,623 4,943 985 458,581 

TOTALS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE TOTALS $ 29,532,855 $ 213,131 $ 204,475 $ 29,541,511 

June 30,2009 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
Land and land rights 
Structures and improvements 
Fire trucks and mounted 

equipment 
Special purpose equipment 
Office equipment 
Shop and station equipment 

TOTALS 

Balance 
June 30,2008 Additions Retirements 

Balance 
June 30.2009 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

June 30, 2009 (continued) 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 

Balance Balance 
June 30,2008 Additions Retirements June 30, 2009 

WATER DEPARTMENT: 
Land and land rights 
Source of supply plant 
Pumping plant 
Water treatment plant 
Transmission and distribution 

plant 
Office furniture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Tools and shop equipment 
Structures - office and shop 
Communication equipment 
Special purpose equipment 

SEWER DEPARTMENT: 
Land and land rights 31 9,382 2,624 322,006 
Structures and improvements 302,127 - - 302,127 
Sewer collection facility 6,560,441 777,072 2,890 7,334,623 
Sewer treatment facility 5,586,183 153,799 5,739,982 
Sewer disposal facility 1,353,633 26,736 1,380,369 
General plant facilities 525,813 1,430 497 526,746 

14,647,579 961,661 3,387 15,605,853 

AMBULANCE DEPARTMENT: 
Special purpose equipment 133,424 - 133,424 
Equipment - trucks 208,989 102,305 31 1,294 
Office equipment 

TOTALS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE TOTALS $ 28,068,615 $ 1,501,003 $ 36,763 $ 29,532,855 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 7: OTHER PAYABLES 

Other payables consist of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009: 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
613011 0 6130109 613011 0 6/30/09 

Grants payable $ 1,527 $ 1,527 $ 90,861 $ 90,861 
Miscellaneous - - 3 15 

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities: 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

June 30,2010 
Balance Balance Due Within 

June 30, 2009 Additions Retirements June 30,201 0 One Year 

Compensated absences $ 171,947 $ 91,577 $ 101,337 $ 162,187 $ 40,547 

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 171,947 $ 91,577 $ 101,337 $ 162,187 $ 40,547 

June 30,2009 
Balance Balance Due Within 

June 30, 2008 Additions Retirements June 30, 2009 One Year 

Compensated absences $ 120,684 $ 93,581 $ 42,318 $ 171,947 $ 42,987 

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 120,684 $ 93,581 $ 42,318 $ 171,947 $ 42,987 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30.2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 

June 30,2010 

Bonds and Notes Payable: 
2002 Water Refunding Loan 

Agreement 
Sewer Treatment, 2001 

installment payable 
2006 Municipal Finance 

Corporation installment 
payable 

2008 Municipal Finance 
Corporation installment 
payable 

Less: deferred amount on 
refunding water bonds 

Compensated absences 

Balance Balance Due Within 
June 30, 2009 Additions Retirements June 30, 201 0 One Year 

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 2,026,097 $ 81,848 $ 402,755 $ 1,705,190 $ 308,268 

June 30,2009 

Bonds and Notes Payable: 
2002 Water Refunding Loan 

Agreement 
Sewer Treatment, 2001 

installment payable 
2006 Municipal Finance 

Corporation installment 
payable 

2008 Municipal Finance 
Corporation installment 
payable 

Less: deferred amount on 
refunding water bonds 

Balance Balance Due Within 
June 30, 2008 Additions Retirements June 30,2009 One Year 

Compensated absences 11 8,007 91,505 55,832 153,680 38,420 

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 2,224,602 $ 156,505 $ 355,010 $ 2,026,097 $ 377,173 



Page 17 of 30 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2010, including interest payments of $244,345, are as follows: 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

2008 Municipal Finance 
Year Ending 2002 Water Refunding Loan 2001 Sewer Treatment Corporation Installment 

June 30, Agreement Installment Payable Payable Total 
Princi~al Interest Princi~al Interest Princi~al Interest Princi~al Interest 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 9: NET ASSETS - RESTRICTED (GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS) 

Invested in Capital Assets. Net of Related Debt 

The amount invested in capital assets at June 30, 2010 consists of the following: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) $ 1,159,357 $ 16,602,391 $ 17,761,748 

Construction in progress - 159,134 159,134 
Less: debt related to capital assets - (1,538,606) ( I  ,538,606) 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,159,357 $ 15,222,919 $ 16,382,276 

Restricted for Debt Service 

The amount restricted for debt service at June 30, 2010 consists of the following: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Construction receivable - upstream users 
Restricted to pay debt $ - $ 682,708 $ 682,708 

NOTE 10: INSURANCE RECOVERIES 

The District has received insurance recoveries for the Slide Fire that have been included in other revenue 
(Exhibit "En) and miscellaneous (Exhibit "H") as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 

June 30,2008 
June 30,2009 
June 30,2010 

Cumulative total 

Activities Activities Total 
$ 8,000 $ 333,597 $ 341,597 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NOTE 11 : PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer public empioyee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS 
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of 
California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and District 
policy. Copies of PERS' annual financial report may be obtained from their executive office: 400 P 
Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

Funding Policv 

Miscellaneous plan participants are required to contribute 8% and safety plan participants are required to 
contribute 9% of their annual covered salary. The District makes the contributions required of District 
employees on their behalf and for their account. The District is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate; the contribution rate indicated for the period is 18.458% for the miscellaneous plan and 
28.091% for the safety plan of covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the 
District are established and may be amended by PERS. 

For the year ended June 30, 2010, the amount contributed by the District on behalf of the employees was 
$654,808 and was equal to the District's required contributions. The required contribution was determined 
as part of the June 30, 2007, actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. 

Three Year Trend Information for Running Springs Water District 

Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension 
Fiscal Year Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation 

June 30, 2008 $ 536,667 
June 30,2009 648,277 
June 30,2010 654,808 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 11 : PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Assembly Bill 1974, which added Sections 20840-20842 to the California Government Code allowed 
PERS to create risk pools and mandate public agency participation in those pools. Commencing with the 
valuation of June 30, 2003, mandatory pooling was established for plans with less than 100 active 
members. As a result, the Running Springs Water District was required to participate in a risk pool of 
other agencies with less than 100 employees. 

At the time of joining a risk pool (valuation of June 30, 2003), a side fund was created to account for the 
difference between the funded status of the pool and funded status of the District's plan. The side fund for 
the District's plan as of the June 30, 2007 valuation was a negative $1,034,826 for the miscellaneous plan 
and a negative $649,768 for the safety plan. 

The side fund will be credited, on an annual basis, with the actuarial investment return assumption. This 
assumption is currently 7.75%. The negative side fund will cause the District's required employer 
contribution rate to be increased by the Amortization of the Side Fund. In the absence of subsequent 
contract amendments or funding charges, the side fund will disappear at the end of the amortization 
period. The amortization period remaining as of June 30, 2007, was 17 years for the miscellaneous plan 
and 12 years for the safety plan. 

NOTE 12: SAFE DRINKING WATER LOAN CONTRACT, ISSUANCE OF WATER REFUNDING 
REVENUE BOND, SERIES 1993 AND ISSUANCE OF 2002 WATER REFUNDING 
LOAN AGREEMENT 

On June 13, 1984, the District executed a contract with the State of California Department of Water 
Resources under the Safe Drinking Water Bond Law of 1976, for a loan not to exceed $1,545,000 to 
assist in financing construction required to meet safe drinking water standards established pursuant to the 
Health and Safety Code. The initial rate of interest on this loan was 8 112% per annum, subject to 
adjustment by the State Treasurer. In accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Bond Law of 1988, the 
State determined the actual interest rate to be 8.1% and the change was effective retroactively to the 
inception of the loan. 

On September 15, 1993, the District issued Water Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 1993, in the amount 
of $1,474,724 at 6.5% interest rate to pay off the State of California Safe Drinking Water loan contract. 
The Refunding Bond was payable in forty semi-annual installments with the first installment due 
January I ,  1994, and could not be redeemed, in whole or part, prior to July 2003. 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 12: SAFE DRINKING WATER LOAN CONTRACT, ISSUANCE OF WATER REFUNDING 
REVENUE BOND, SERIES 1993 AND ISSUANCE OF 2002 WATER REFUNDING 
LOAN AGREEMENT (continued) 

On December 30, 2002, the District completed a refunding of the Water Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 
1993 by issuing the 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement in the amount of $1,042,337 at 4.15% 
interest rate. The 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement is payable in twenty-one semi-annual 
installments with the first installment due July 1, 2003. The District may, at its option, prepay the unpaid 
principal components of the loan commencing on January 1, 2004 and on any loan repayment date 
thereafter, in whole, upon not less than 60 days prior written notice to the lender, at a prepayment price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the loan to be repaid, plus accrued interest on the loan to the 
prepayment date, plus a prepayment premium equal to 1% of the principal amount of the loan to be 
prepaid. 

NOTE 13: DEFEASED DEBT 

On December 30, 2002, the District issued 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement in the amount of 
$1,042,337 with interest at 4.1 5% to advance refund the Water Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 1993 
totaling $1,034,836. The Water Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 1993 mature on July 1, 201 3 and were 
callable on July I, 2003. The net proceeds of $1,034,836 (after $7,501 issuance costs) were deposited in 
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all debt service payments on the Water Refunding 
Revenue Bond, Series 1993 until the bonds were called on July 1, 2003. As a result, the Series 1993 
bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds was removed as a liability of the 
District. 

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of $49,426. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction 
from 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement payable is being charged as a component of interest 
expense through July 1, 2013 using the straight-line method of amortization. The District in effect 
reduced its aggregate debt service cash flow by $84,739 over the 10 % years and obtained an economic 
gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $67,877. 

NOTE 14: SEWER TREATMENT, 2001 INSTALLMENT PAYABLE 

On December 21, 2001, the District issued Sewer Treatment, 2001 Installment Payable in the amount of 
$2,000,000 at 4.75% to pay for sewer treatment plant improvements. The installment payable is being 
repaid in thirty semi-annual installments with the first installment due September 21, 2002. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,201 0 AND 2009 

NOTE 15: 2006 MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION INSTALLMENT PAYABLE 

On July 19, 2006, the District executed an installment sale agreement with Municipal Finance Corporation 
in the amount of $240,000 at 4.75% to pay for the purchase of various vehicles. The agreement dictates 
that the vehicles purchased are collateral for the loan. The installment payable was to be paid in three 
annual installments beginning August 2, 2007. The loan was paid in full in August 2009. 

NOTE 16: 2008 MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION INSTALLMENT PAYABLE 

On December 30, 2008, the District executed an installment sale agreement with Municipal Finance 
Corporation in the amount of $65,000 at 4.75% to pay for the purchase of a new 2007 Chevy Type I1 
leader van ambulance. The agreement dictates that the ambulance purchased is collateral for the loan. 
The installment payable is to be paid in three annual installments beginning February 18, 2010. 

NOTE 17: RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District participates in a risk management under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Special 
District Risk Management Authority (Authority). The Authority was created under the provisions of 
California Government Code Section 6500 ef. seq. 

The Authority is governed by a board consisting of seven members who are elected at-large from the 
membership. The board controls the operations of the Authority including selection of management and 
approval of operating budgets. The relationship between the District and the Authority is such that the 
Authority is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes. 

The purpose of the Authority is to provide risk financing and risk management services by arranging and 
administering programs of insurance. At June 30, 2010, the District participation in the insurance 
programs of the Authority was as follows: 

Limits Deductible 
Personal Injury and Property Damage $10,000,000 per occurrence I aggregate where $500 (property damage 
Liability Coverage - General applicable only) 

Personal Injury and Property Damage $1 0,000,000 per accident 
Liability Coverage - Auto 

Public Officials and Employees Errors $10,000,000 per wrongful act I annual member none 
and Omissions Liability aggregate 

Employment Practices Liability $10,000,000 per wrongful employment practice / none up to $10,000 
aggregate limits per member 50% co-insurance from 
included with Public Officials and $1 0,000 to $50,000 
Employee Errors and Omissions none for amounts 
Coverage greater than $50,000 

Employee Benefits Liability $10,000,000 per wrongful act / annual member none 
aggregate 
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NOTE 17: RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

Limits Deductible 
Employee Dishonesty Coverage $400,000 per loss none 

Public Officials Personal Liability $500,000 per occurrence I annual aggregate $500 
per Board Member 

Automobile Physical Damage 

Uninsured Motorist Bodily Injury 
Coverage 

Property Coverage 

ACV Limits replacement cost (stated value $250/$500 or 
adjusted for depreciation) (on $500/$1,000 
selected vehicles) comprehensive I 

collision (as elected per 
vehicle) 

$750,000 per accident none 

$1,000,000,000 replacement cost for scheduled $2,000 
property if replaced (if not replaced 
within two years, actual cash value 
basis) 

Boiler and Machinery $1 00,000,000 replacement cost 

NOTE 18: SALVAGE VALUES PERTAINING TO GRANT MONIES 

The District received a Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) award from the State of California Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection in the amount of $180,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006. The grant 
was to assist with the purchase of the Type Ill Wildland Fire Engine, which was purchased in September 
2005. Under the grant agreement, the Federal Government has a vested interest in the fire engine until 
such time as the fair market value is less than $5,000. The VFA percentage used to purchase the 
equipment will be applied to the sale price and recovered for the Government during the sale. The 
Federal Government may not have to be reimbursed if the disposal sale amounts to a fair market value of 
less than $5,000. 
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JUNE 30.2040 AND 2009 

NOTE 19: OPERATING LEASES 

The District has two operating leases: a copy machine and a postage machine. The copy machine lease 
expires in March 201 1, and the postage machine lease expires in May 2012. The following is a schedule 
of future minimum lease payments required under the operating leases that have initial or remaining non- 
cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30,2010: 

COPY Postage 
Year Ended Machine Machine Totals 

June 30, 2011 $ 2,241 $ 1,980 $ 4,221 
June 30, 2012 - 1,980 1,980 

$ 2,241 $ 3,960 $ 6,201 

NOTE 20: LOSS CONTINGENCY 

On January 1, 2010, Section 2 of Section 116875 of the Health and Safety Code of California became 
operative. The section modified the allowed content of lead in pipes and plumbing supplies in order to be 
considered "lead free." Management is in the process of evaluating the effects that this modified law will 
have on the District. It is likely that some of the District's inventory will need to be scrapped as obsolete. 
As of June 30, 2010, the amount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated. 

NOTE 21: FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

Certain amounts in the June 30, 2009 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
June 30, 201 0 presentation. 

A portion of the compensated absences balance previously reported as current was reclassified to long- 
term. As a result, the Fund Balance in the Governmental Fund was restated. The long-term portion does 
not require the use of current financial resources and is not reported as an expenditure in the 
governmental fund. 

NOTE 22: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

Beginning net assets have been restated as a result of both a change in accounting principle and a prior 
period adjustment. 

Chanqe in Accountinq Principle 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and 
Financial Reporfing for Intangible Assets in June 2007, which is effective for periods that begin after 
June 15, 2009. For Running Springs Water District, that means the fiscal year July 1, 2009 - June 30, 
201 0. 
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NOTE 22: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (continued) 

Change in Accounting Principle (continued) 

GASB 51 requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions be classified 
as capital assets. GASB 51 also requires that an intangible asset be recognized in the statement of net 
assets only if it is considered "identifiable" meaning that it either: can be separated or divided from the 
government; or arises from contractual or other legal rights. Additionally, the statement establishes a 
specified-conditions approach to recognizing intangible assets that are internally generated. 

For governments that were classified as phase 1 or phase 2 governments for the purposes of 
implementing GASB 34, retroactive reporting was required for intangible assets acquired in fiscal years 
ending after June 30, 1980, except for those considered to have indefinite useful lives as of the effective 
date of the statement and those that would be considered internally generated. Retroactive reporting of 
these intangible assets by phase 3 governments was encouraged but not required. Running Springs 
Water District falls in the category of phase 3 and opted to retroactively report the changes for GASB 51 
because of the comparative statement presentation of the financial statements. 

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the District originally reported professional fees associated with the 
water and sewer master plans in construction in process as costs to be capitalized and amortized after the 
plans were complete. Under the provisions of GASB 51, master plan costs would not meet the criteria to 
be "identifiable" because the costs could not be separated from the government. Therefore, the change 
in accounting principle restates the year ended June 30, 2009 by decreasing construction in progress and 
increasing professional fees expense as follows: 

June 30,2009 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 
Decrease in the construction in process $ - $ (92,807) $ (92,807) 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Increase in professional services 

Water Enterprise 
Sewer Enterprise 
Proprietary Funds Total 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS: 
Decrease in net assets 

Water Enterprise 
Sewer Enterprise 
Proprietary Funds Total 
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NOTE 22: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (continued) 

Prior Period Adiustment 

Effective July 1, 2010, the District terminated workers' compensation coverage with The Public Agency 
Self-Insurance System - of San Bernardino County (PASIS) and began participation in the workers' 
compensation program offered by the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). During the 
transition, it was discovered that excess contributions, which had accumulated in a deposit balance with 
PASlS over the years since the initial membership, were consistently expensed on the books of the 
District. 

The beginning of the year net assets have been restated for both years presented to account for the 
deposit balance. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditure, and Changes in Fund Balance 
(Governmental Fund) and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets (Proprietary 
Fund) for the year ended June 30, 2009 have been restated to record the activity in the deposit balance 
during the year, which consisted of interest earned on the balance and claim payments recorded as 
insurance expense for the District. The summary of line items restated is as follows: 

June 30,2009 

CURRENT ASSETS and TOTAL ASSETS: 
Increase in deposit - workers' 

compensation 

REVENUES: 
Interest revenue on workers' 

compensation deposit 
Fire Protection 
Water Enterprise 
Sewer Enterprise 

EXPENDITURES: 
Decrease in insurance 

Fire Protection 
Water Enterprise 
Sewer Enterprise 

Effect on net change in fund balance 
and net assets 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 
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NOTE 22: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (continued) 

Prior Period Adjustment (continued) 

The Net Assets restated as a result of both the change in accounting principle and the prior period 
adjustment for June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009 are as follows: 

June 30.2010 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

Net Assets - beginning of the year, as 
previously stated $ 1,742,770 $ 18,163,693 $ 19,906,463 

Prior Period Adiustment 
Increase resulting from workers' 

compensation insurance deposit 
not previously established 

Chanqe in Accountinn Principle 
Decrease for intangibles previously 

capitalized now expensed - (92,807) (92,807) 

Net Assets - beginning of the year, as restated $ 1,927,726 $ 18,241,615 $ 20,169,341 

June 30,2009 

Net Assets - beginning of the year, as 
previously stated 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Prior Period Adjustment 
lncrease resulting from workers' 

compensation insurance deposit 
not previously established 157,071 144,989 302,060 

Net Assets - beginning of the year, as restated $ 1,646,353 $ 17,816,765 $ 19,463,118 
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NOTE 22: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (continued) 

Prior Period Adiustment (continued) 

The Fund Balance in the Governmental Fund restated as a result of both the prior period adjustment and 
the reclassification of compensated absences for June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009 are as follows: 

Governmental Fund June 30,2010 June 30,2009 

Fund Balance - beginning of the year, as 
previously stated $ 507,625 $ 176,777 

Prior Period Adiustment 
Increase resulting from workers' 

compensation insurance deposit 
not previously established 

Reclassification 
Long-term compensated balances 

reclasssified from current 

Fund Balance - beginning of the year, 
as restated 
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NOTE 22: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (continued) 

Prior Period Adiustment (continued) 

The Change in Net Assets restated as a result of both the change in accounting principle and the prior 
period adjustment for June 30, 2009 are as follows: 

June 30,2009 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

Change in Net Assets, as previously stated $ 253,488 $ 491,917 $ 745,405 

Prior Period Adiustment 
Interest revenue on workers' 

compensation deposit 
Decrease itl insurance 

expenditures 1 expenses 

Change in Accounting Principle 
Increase in professional services 

expenses - (92,807) (92,807) 

Change in Net Assets, as restated $ 281,373 $ 424,850 $ 706,223 
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NOTE 23: NEW PRONOUNCEMENT 

In March 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approved Statement No. 54, 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (Statement). Certain of the significant 
changes in the Statement will require the following: 

Fund balance for the District's governmental fund will be displayed in the following classifications 
depicting the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources 
can be used: 

Nonspendable fund balance-amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in a 
spendable form (such as inventories and prepaid amounts) or are legally or contractually required 
to be maintained intact. 

Restricted fund balance-amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constraints imposed by external providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of 
government), or imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed fund balance-amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal action of the District's Board. 

Assigned fund balance-amounts the District intends to use for specific purposes that do not meet 
the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. 

Unassigned fund balance-amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts can be 
reported only in the District's General Fund. 

The Statement also establishes several new presentation and disclosure requirements. 

The provisions of GASBS No. 54 must be implemented by the District no later than the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2010. Implementation will require the District to restate the existing fund balance for the 
governmental fund. 

NOTE 24: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Effective July 1, 2010, the District terminated workers' compensation coverage with The Public Agency 
Self-Insurance System - of San Bernardino County (PASIS) and began participation in the workers' 
compensation program offered by the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA). All claims 
initiated on or after July 1, 2010 will be administered by SDRMA. Claims occurring on or before June 30, 
2010, will be administered by York Insurance Services Group, Inc. - California, a California Corporation 
(York). The District entered into a self-insurance agreement with York effective July 1, 2010 and will pay 
administration fees of $1 12 per open claim each month. 

On September 15, 2010, the District decided to pay off the remaining balance of the 2002 Water 
Refunding loan on January 11, 201 1. The early payment will be made from District reserve funds. See 
Note 12 and Schedule Five for loan information. 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 10, 2010, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 



Exhibit " K  
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

REVENUES: 
Property taxes 
Assessments - fire availability charges 
Other revenue 
Interest revenue 
Intergovernmental revenue 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Salaries and wages 
Director fees 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Safety clothing and personal supplies 
Telephone 
Insurance 
Maintenance: 

Building 
Automotive equipment 
Special purpose equipment 

Memberships 
Office expense 

- Professional services 
Education, training 
Small tools and instruments 
Special department expense - fire fighting1 

medical supplies 
Utilities 
Dispatching expense 
Community relations - fire prevention 
Miscellaneous 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - FIRE PROTECTION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

Budgeted Amounts 
Oriainal Final 

2009 
Actual Amounts Variance with Budaeted Amounts Actual Amounts Variance with " 

(Budgetary Basis) Final Budget Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Final Budget 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - FIRE PROTECTION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

EXPENDITURES: (continued) 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts 
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) 

General operating expenses allocated from Water 
Department - salaries, utilities, etc. $ 24,562 $ 24,562 $ 24,562 

Capital assets 
Total Expenditures 

EXCESSREVENUESOVEREXPENDITURES 376,138 376,138 355,744 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

Total Other Financing Sources 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE, as restated 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 376,138 376,138 370,771 

FUND BALANCE - beginning of year (309,967) (309,967) 821,541 

FUND BALANCE - end of year $ 66,171 $ 66,171 $ 1,192,312 

2009 
Variance with Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts 
Final Budget Original Final (Budgetary Basis) 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS IN SERVICE 

JUNE 30,2010 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
Balance Balance Balance Balance 

June 30,2009 Additions Retirements June 30,2010 June 30,2009 Additions Retirement June 30,2010 
FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

Land and land rights 
Structures and improvements 
Fire truck and mounted equipment 
Special purpose equipment 
Office equipment 
Shop and station equipment 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TOTAL 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS IN SERVICE 

JUNE 30,2010 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

UTILITY PLANT IN SEWICE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
Balance Balance Balance Balance 

June 30,2009 Additions Retirements June 30, 2010 June 30,2009 Additions Retirement June 30,2010 
WATER DEPARTMENT: 

Land and land rights 

Source of supply plant: 
Purveyor's connections 
Wells and springs 

Pumping plant: 
Structures and improvements 
Pumping equipment 

Water treatment plant: 
Purification system 

Transmission and distribution plant: 
Reservoirs and tanks 
Mains 
Hydrants 
Services and meters 

General plant: 
Office and furniture equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Tools and shop equipment 
Structures - office and shop 
Communication equipment 
Special purpose equipment 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS IN SERVICE 

JUNE 30,2010 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (continued) 

UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
Balance 

June 30.2009 
Balance 

June 30,2009 
Balance 

June 30.2010 
Balance 

June 30.2010 Additions Retirements Additions Retirement 
SEWER DEPARTMENT: 

Land and land rights 
Structures and improvements 
Sewer collection facility 
Sewer treatment facility 
Sewer disposal facility 
General plant facility 

AMBULANCE DEPARTMENT: 
Special purpose equipment 
Equipment - trucks 
Office equipment 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE TOTAL 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER DEPARTMENT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Monthly service charges 
Metered water sales and water from hydrants 
Turn-on and shut-off charges 
Delinquent charges and service fees 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Source of supply: 

Supervision, labor and expense 
Maintenance 
Purchased water 

Pumping: 
Maintenance and repair 
Purchased power 

Water treatment: 
Supervision, labor and expense 
Water purification expense 

Transmission and distribution: 
Supervising, labor and expense 
Maintenance and repair 
Maintenance - blacktop and street 

Customers' accounts: 
Supervision, labor and expense for meter 

reading and maintenance 
Meter maintenance 
Uncollectible accounts 

Administrative and general: 
Salaries 
Directors' fees 
Office supplies and expenses 
Computer technical support 
Truck expense, gas and oil 
Truck expense, repairs and tractor expense 
Utilities 
Telephone 



Schedule Two 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT Page 2 of 2 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER DEPARTMENT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

OPERATING EXPENSES: (continued) 
Administrative and general: (continued) 

Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Repairs and maintenance 
Permits 
Professional services 
Dues and subscriptions 
Miscellaneous supplies 
Educational programs 
Insurance 
Radio maintenance and repair 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 
General expense allocated to sewer, fire and 

ambulance departments 

Total Operating Expenses 1,672,371 1,827,052 

OPERATING LOSS (261,371) (391,764) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES: 
Revenues: 

Gain on disposal of capital assets 
Assessments - water availability charges 
lnterest earned on invested funds 
Leasing revenue 
Special meter charge 
Miscellaneous 

Expenses: 
Loss on disposal of capital asset 
lnterest on long-term debt 
Cost of assessing water availability charges 
Bond issuance costs 

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 73,473 98,782 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 10,505 1 1,244 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 83,978 $ 110,026 



Schedule Three 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - AMBULANCE DEPARTMENT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Ambulance service fees 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Salaries 
Insurance 
Telephone 
Office expense 
Professional services 
Dues and subscriptions 
Medical supplies 
Gas, fuel and oil 
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 
Miscellaneous supplies 
Uncollectible accounts 
Depreciation 
General operating expenses allocated from Water 

Department - salaries, utilities, etc. 

OPERATING LOSS 

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Expense: 

Interest on long-term debt 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - SEWER DEPARTMENT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Service charges $ 939,209 $ 940,455 
Usage charges 93,035 91,658 
Expense reimbursement from upstream users 389,833 330,866 
California Demand Response Program (EnerNOC) 7,195 5,306 

1,429,272 1,368,285 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Sewage collections: 
Salaries and wages 
Repairs and maintenance 

Sewage treatment: 
Salaries and wages 
Utilities, electricity 
Operating supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Chemical analysis 

Administrative and general: 
Salaries 
Directors' fees 
Employee benefits 
Payroll taxes 
Permits 
Insurance 
Maintenance - truck 
Memberships and dues 
Education and training 
Professional services 
Small tools 
Telephone 
Office expense 
Depreciation expense 
General operating expenses allocated from Water 

Department - salaries, utilities, etc. 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING LOSS 
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RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND - SEWER DEPARTMENT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2010 AND 2009 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES: 
Revenues: 

Assessments - sewer availability charges 
lnterest earned on invested funds 
Miscellaneous income 
Leachate loads 
Special sewer charges - treatment plant 

improvements 

Expenses: 
Loss on disposal of capital asset 
Cost of assessing water availability charges 
lnterest on long-term debt 

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 



Schedule Five 

Due Bate 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

2002 WATER REFUNDING LOAN AGREEMENT 

PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30,2010 

4.15% 
Interest Principal Total Amount 
Payable Payable Payable 



Schedule Six 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

SEWER TREATMENT, SERIES 2001 INSTALLMENT PAYABLE. CITY NATIONAL BANK 

PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30,2010 

Due Date 
Interest 
Payable 

Principal 
Payable 

$ 67,651 
69,258 
70,902 
72,586 
74,310 
76,075 
77,882 
79,732 
81,625 
83,564 
85,549 
87,580 
89,660 
91,791 

Total Amount 
Payable 

$ 93,970 
93,970 
93,969 
93,969 
93,969 
93,970 
93,970 
93,970 
93,969 
93,970 
93,970 
93,970 
93,970 
93,970 



Schedule Seven 

Due Date 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

2008 MUNICIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION INSTALLMENT PAYABLE 

PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30,2010 

4.75% 
Interest 
Payable 

Principal 
Payable 

Total Amount 
Payable 



Schedule Eight 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

JUNE 30,2040 

Improvement Act of 1 91 1 Bond Act of 191 5 

No. 1 No. 2 No. 3 No. 4 No. 5 No. 8 No. 9 No. 6 No. 7 No. 10 Total 
ASSETS 

Cash with fiscal agent 
Temporary investments (LAIF) 
Assessments receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Bonds payable - 191 1 Act Bonds ....................................................................... See Below ...................................................................... 
Bonds payable - 191 5 Act Bonds $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,080,000 $ 1,080,000 
Due to others - - - - 6,638 - 127,263 7,245 99,304 252,370 492,820 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 6,638 $ - $ 127,263 $ 7,245 $ 99,304 $ 1,332,370 $ 1,572,820 

NOTE: The District organized Assessment Districts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 8 & 9 under the lmprovement Act of 191 1. Under this Act, the Running Springs Water 
District has no liability to the bondholders until assessments are collected. Therefore, neither the assessments receivable nor the bonds 
payable are reflected in the above balance sheets for those seven assessment districts. 

The District organized Assessment District 6, 7 and 10 under the Bond Act of 191 5. Under this Act, the Running Springs Water 
District has no liability to the bondholders until assessments are collected. 



Schedule Nine 

RUNNING SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010 

Improvement Act of 191 1 

No. 1 No. 2 No. 3 No. 4 No. 5 No. 8 No. 9 

DUE TO OTHERS, July 1,2009 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 97,199 $ - $ 126,303 

Add: 
Interest earned on invested funds - 
Property tax assessments received - 

Less: 
Administrative fees - - - - - - - 
Payments on bonds - - - - - - - 
Capital improvements paid - - - - (90,855) - - 
Legal fees - - - - - - - 

Bond Act of 191 5 

No. 6 No. 7 No. 10 

$ 7,245 $ 98,566 $ 266,211 

Total 

DUE TO OTHERS, June 30,2010 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 6,638 $ - $ 127,263 $ 7,245 $ 99,304 $ 252,370 $ 492,820 



HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION 

The formation of the Running Springs Water District was approved by the voters in March 1958, and 
the District was incorporated on March 17, 1958. An election held on June 23, 1959 approved a water 
works bond issue of $248,000 which was sold as of September 1, 1959. 

On August 25, 1962, the Board of Directors established a fire department within the Running Springs 
Water District to provide fire protection for the area included in the Water District. 

At an election held September 22, 1964, the voters of the District approved a water works bond issue 
totaling $250,000 which was sold as of December 31, 1964. 

On September 24, 1968, the voters of the District approved authorization for the District to incur a 
bonded indebtedness of $1,200,000 for the construction of facilities to provide for a sewage disposal 
system. The bonds were sold in September 1969, and construction of the sewage disposal system 
began during 1969-70. At June 30, 1976, the sewage disposal system was completely constructed. 

Assessment districts were formed for the purpose of assessing the cost and expense of providing 
sewer service within the assessment districts. Four assessment districts were completed and the 
improvements transferred to the Sewer Operating Fund during 1972-73. During 1973-74, one 
additional assessment district was completed and the improvements transferred to the Sewer 
Operating Fund. Two assessment districts were formed during 1974-75 and construction was 
completed by June 30, 1976. Additional assessment districts were formed and improvements 
completed during 1986-87 and 1993-94. In 2003-2004 a new assessment district was formed and 
construction for water improvements was completed during 2004-05. 

On May 9, 1977, the County of San Bernardino Service Area No. 79 (Green Valley Lake) entered into 
an agreement with the District for wastewater treatment and disposal. A similar agreement was 
entered into with Arrowbear Park County Water District on January 20, 1977. These contracts provide 
for the transportation, treatment and disposal of sewage wastewater from C.S.A. #79 and Arrowbear 
service areas by the Running Springs Water District. As consideration, an initial payment totaling 
$304,302 was required. The contract also provides for C.S.A. #79 and Arrowbear to assume 
responsibility for $233,409 principal due under the District's general obligation sewer bonds and to pay 
semi-annual principal and interest thereon. C.S.A. #79 paid this obligation in advance during 1978-79. 

The Directors of the District at June 30, 2010, were: 

Term Expires 

Kenneth Ayers, President 
Kevin Kellems, Vice-President 
Pamella Bennett 
Michael Terry 
Paul Shouse 

December 201 3 
December 201 1 
December 201 3 
December 201 1 
December 201 3 

The general manager of the District is Sam Massey; Joan Eaton is treasurer of the District and 
secretary to the Board of Directors. 

Consultants for the District include Engineering Resources of Southern California, engineers, and Best, 
Best and Krieger, attorneys. 



FINANCIAL REVIEW 

The change in fund balancelnet assets from operations of the district for June 30, 2010 and 2009 are 
summarized as follows: 

Exhibit "B" and Exhibit "F": 
Fire Protection - Change in Met Assets 

June 30,2010 June 30,2009 

$ 302,303 $ 281,373 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Assets - Proprietary Fund: 

Schedule Two - Water Enterprise 83,978 1 10,026 
Schedule Three - Ambulance Enterprise (1 43,641) (201,606) 
Schedule Four - Sewer Enterprise 92,656 51 6,430 

Exhibit "H" - Change in Net Assets 12,993 424,850 

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (Exhibit "B") $ 315,296 $ 706,223 

Property tax revenues for the past five years are summarized below: 

Water Department $ - $ - $ - $ 43,860 $ - 
Fire Department 1,531,039 1,628,493 1,672,105 1,495,770 990,009 
Sewer Department - - - 43,860 - 

Based on information provided from the San Bernardino Auditor-Controller's office, we present below 
comparative assessed valuations, at 100% of full value, for the District for the last five years: 

Assessed Values 

Property tax rates per $1 00 full value assessed valuation for voter approved debt for the past five years 
are shown below: 

2009-201 0 2008-2009 2007-2008 2006-2007 2005-2006 
Water Bond Service Fund $ .0000 $ .0000 $ .0000 $ .0000 $ .OOOO 
Sewer Bond Service Fund .OOOO .OOOO .OOOO .OOOO .OOOO 

These tax rates are within the maximum tax rates allowed under California Revenue and Taxation 
Codes 2263 and 2270. 



The monthly water rates were revised in July 2009. The District's water rates in effect at June 30, 2010 
and 2009 were as follows: 

Additional charge for 
Minimum monthly service water consumption per 

charge cubic foot 
7/09 7/08 07/09 07/08 

518 and 314" $18.15 $18.15 3.266 3.266 

In addition to these water rates there is a $3.90 monthly charge to repay the Safe Drinking Water loan 
made in 1984-85 for water system improvements. 

Monthly sewer rates were $27.02 plus 15% of the water usage for residential units and $27.02 plus 
33 113% of the monthly water usage charge for water supplied to commercial units. The monthly 
sewer rates were revised in July 2008 and did not change in July 2009. There is an additional $3.00 
monthly sewer charge to pay off the $2,000,000 Sewer Treatment, 2001 Installment Payable for 
200112003 improvements to the sewer treatment plant. 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS COMMENTS 

CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2010, the District had $3,409,604 in petty cash, cash in bank, cash with fiscal agents, and 
the Local Agency lnvestment Fund (temporary investments). Of this, $-0- was restricted, $2,927,832 is 
shown in current assets and $481,772 is cash held for assessment districts. 

Governmental 
Activities 

Petty cash $ - 
Cash in checking - First Mountain Bank - 
Local Agency Investment Fund 976,528 
Cash with fiscal agents - 
Less cash for assessment districts - 

976,528 

Business-type 
Activities Total 

$ 1,000 $ 1,000 
220,343 220,343 

2,075,348 3,051,876 
136,385 136,385 

(481,772) (481,772) 
1,951,304 2,927,832 

Less restricted amounts - - - 

CURRENT ASSETS (cash and 
temporary investments) $ 976,528 $ 1,951,304 $ 2,927,832 



LONG-TERM DEBT 

On June 13, 1984 the District executed a contract with the State of California Department of Water 
Resources under the Safe Drinking Water Bond Law of 1976, for a loan not to exceed $1,545,000 to 
assist in financing construction required to meet safe drinking water standards established pursuant to 
the Health and Safety Code. The initial rate of interest on this loan was 8 112% per annum, subject to 
adjustment by the State Treasurer. In accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Bond Law of 1988, the 
State determined the actual interest rate to be 8.1% and the change was effective retroactively to the 
inception of the loan. 

On September 15, 1993, the District issued Water Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 1993, in the 
amount of $1,474,724 at 6.5% interest rate to pay off the State of California Safe Drinking Water loan 
contract. The Refunding Bond was payable in forty semi-annual installments with the first installment 
due January 1, 1994, and could not be redeemed, in whole or part, prior to July 2003. 

On December 30, 2002, the District completed an advance refunding of the Water Refunding Revenue 
Bond, Series 1993 by issuing the 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement in the amount of $1,042,337 
at 4.15% interest rate. The 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement is payable in twenty-one semi- 
annual installments with the first installment due July 1, 2003. The District may, at its option, prepay 
the unpaid principal components of the loan commencing on January 1, 2004 and on any loan 
repayment date thereafter, in whole, upon not less than 60 days prior written notice to the lender, at a 
prepayment price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the loan to be repaid, plus accrued interest 
on the loan to the prepayment date, plus a prepayment premium equal to 1% of the principal amount of 
the loan to be prepaid. The repayment schedule for the 2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement is 
shown in Schedule Five. The principal loan balance at June 30, 2010 is $398,467. 

On December 21, 2001, the District issued Sewer Treatment, 2001 Installment Payable in the amount 
of $2,000,000 at 4.75% to pay for sewer treatment plant improvements. The installment payable is to 
be paid in thirty semi-annual installments with the first installment due September 21, 2002. The 
installment payable may not be redeemed in whole, prior to September 21, 2007 except for an 
extraordinary payment not to exceed $750,000 as a result of the District receiving a grant from the 
state or federal government related to this project. The repayment schedule for the Sewer Treatment, 
Series 2001 Installment Payable is shown in Schedule Six. The principal loan balance at June 30, 
201 0 is $1,108,165. 

On July 19, 2006, the District executed an installment sale agreement with Municipal Finance 
Corporation in the amount of $240,000 at 4.75% to pay for the purchase of various vehicles. The 
agreement dictates that the vehicles purchased are collateral for the loan. The installment payable was 
to be paid in three annual installments beginning August 2, 2007. During the year ended June 30, 
201 0, the loan was paid in full. 

On December 30, 2008, the District executed an installment sale agreement with Municipal Finance 
Corporation in the amount of $65,000 at 4.75% to pay for the purchase of a new 2007 Chevy Type I1 
leader van ambulance. The agreement dictates that the ambulance purchased is collateral for the loan. 
The installment payable is to be paid in three annual installments beginning February 18, 2010. The 
repayment schedule for 2008 Municipal Finance Corporation Installment Payable is shown in Schedule 
Seven. The principal loan balance at June 30, 2010 is $44,331. The loan has been assigned to William 
A. Morton and Anja Nolting Morton, Trustees of the Morton Revocable Trust dated 511 7/01. 



DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE -WATER 

Starting with the year ended June 30, 2004, Article IV, Section 4.5 (b) in the covenants for the 2002 
Water Refunding Loan Agreement require the net revenues of the water enterprise to exceed the 
operating expenses (excluding depreciation) by at least 1 . I5  times the current year debt service. The 
following is a summary of debt service coverage for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 0: 

Schedule Two - Water Department Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets: 

Operating income (loss) $ (261,371) 
Non-operating revenues 359,366 
Add back depreciation 203,125 
Capital contributions, facility charges, and connection fees 10,505 
Net Revenues $ 311,625 

2002 Water Refunding Loan Agreement: 
7-1-09 Principal and interest 
1-1-1 0 Principal and interest 

Annual Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio (required coverage is 1.15) 
$31 1,625 divided by $123,489 = 2.52 

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE - SEWER 

Section 5.03 in the covenants for the Sewer Treatment, Series 2001 Installment Payable, requires the 
net revenues of the sewer enterprise to exceed the operating expenses (excluding depreciation) by at 
least 1 . I 5  times the current year debt service for the 2001 Installment Payable. The following is a 
summary of debt service coverage for the fiscal year ended June 30,201 0: 

Schedule Four - Sewer Department Income Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Assets: 

Operating income (loss) $ (199,359) 
Non-operating revenues 309,290 
Add back depreciation 335,164 
Capital contributions, facility charges, and connection fees 22,138 
Net Revenues $ 467,233 

Sewer Treatment, 2001 Installment Payable: 
9-21-09 Principal and interest 
3-21 -1 0 Principal and interest 

Annual Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio (required coverage is 1.15) 
$467,233 divided by $1 87,939 = 2.49 
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